
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

January 24, 2017 

 
CALENDAR 

Jan 24 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 30 5:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. 1028 HEARING – 2018 Memorial High School Renovation Project 

 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Central High School – Sydney Bias 
Memorial High School – Nolan Grose 

 

E. MINUTES 
January 10, 2017 – Public Work Session  
January 10, 2017 – Board of Finance Meeting 

January 10, 2017 – Organizational Meeting 
January 10, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
January 17, 2017 – Public Work Session 

 
F. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 

 
 Fund Loans - The Business Office reports on fund loans paid back at the end of 

December 2016. 
 



BOARD AGENDA January 24, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 0130 – Functions - The administration recommends approval of 

the proposed revisions to Board Policy 0130 – Functions, as initially presented 
at the Board’s January 10th regular meeting. 
 

 Administrative Regulation KI – Application for Fundraiser Approval - The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation KI – 
Application for Fundraiser Approval, as initially presented at the Board’s January 

10th regular meeting 
 

 Redevelopment Commission Appointment 

 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 1028/Preliminary Determination /Reimbursement Resolution – The Business 
Office recommends Board adoption of a resolution declaring its intent to execute a 
lease with the Building Corporation, and to request the Building Corporation to sell 

bonds not to exceed an original aggregate principal amount of approximately Ten 
Million Dollars ($10,000,000), and to reimburse costs of the 2018 High School 
Renovation Project from proceeds of the sale of the bonds. 

 
 Conflicts of Interest 

 

 Board Policy 144.1 - Membership – Compensation, Insurance, Expenses and 
Travel - The administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 144.1 – 

Membership – Compensation, Insurance, Expenses and Travel, for initial 
consideration. 
 

 Board Policy 3422.12S Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan 
- The administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.12S 
Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan and asks to waive 2nd 

reading. 
 

 New Course Offerings - The administration seeks Board approval of proposed 

new course offerings. 
 

 Overnight Trip Request - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 
 

I. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 

the administration. 
 



BOARD AGENDA January 24, 2017 
 
 

3 
   

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 
J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

January 10, 2017 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent: Karen S. Carter  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Dawn McGrath Dee Wappes 
 Tina Northern Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard Dee Wappes, Director of Assessment and Data, report on 
Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) testing information and results.  
Superintendent Haworth and Ashley Molyneaux discussed the upcoming 
communication efforts both in-house and from the OneElkhart community 

group.  The Board discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 
MINUTES OF THE 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF FINANCE 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

January 10, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approx. 7:10 p.m. 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 

  Carolyn R. Morris 

  Jeri E. Stahr 

   

Absent: Karen S. Carter  

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the annual meeting of the Board of 

Finance to order. 

 

Call to 

Order 

By unanimous action, the following officers were elected for 2017: 

 President – Susan Daiber 

 Secretary – Doug Weaver 

 

Election of 

Officers 

Board members were provided with an investment history report 

reflecting no investment activity during 2016. 

2016 

Investment 

History 

 

By unanimous action, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 

7:15 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 

 

  ____________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

  ____________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
January 10, 2017 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 7:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
Absent: Karen S. Carter  
   

 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the meeting to order and the pledge was recited. Call to 
Order/Pledge 
 

Doug Thorne, District Council/Chief of Staff, and Susan Ott, notary, 
administered the oath of office as listed in Indiana Code 20-26-4-2, to new 
Board member Rodney Dale, and re-elected Board Members, Susan Daiber, 
Carolyn Morris and Douglas Weaver. 
 

Oath of 
Office 
 

By unanimous action, the Board elected Susan Daiber to serve as president, 
Karen Carter to serve as vice president, and Doug Weaver to serve as 
secretary of the Board of School Trustees for 2017. This election is in 
accordance with the Board’s long standing rotation schedule. As past practice, 
outgoing President Duncan presided over the meeting. 
 

Election of 
Offices 

Four Board members – Glenn Duncan, Jeri Stahr, Douglas Weaver and Rodney 
Dale – publicly disclosed potential conflicts of interest. (Codified Files 1617-88) 
 

Conflict of 
Interest 
 



 

 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:10 p.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

January 10, 2017 
 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approximately 7:15 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

Absent: Karen S. Carter  
   
 

Roll Call 

As in past practice, outgoing President Glenn Duncan called the regular 
meeting of the Board of School Trustees to order.  The pledge of 
allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 

introduced themselves: Noah Yoder, senior from Central High School 
(CHS) and Olivya Beathea, a junior from Memorial High School (MHS).  
Besides SSAC, Noah Yoder is involved in the National Honor Society, 

student council, culinary discovery club, cheer club, Rotary club, is the 
senior class vice president, and plays alto saxophone in the wind 
ensemble.  He reported on basketball, wrestling, swimming, the 

upcoming Say What! and BlazerFest.  Olivya Beathea plays volleyball 
and is the junior class president.  She reported on winter sports, 
highlighting wrestlers who are expected to go far in the state 

tournament including Jordan Siddons, Bryton Goering, Christian Mejia, 
David Eli and Tristan Goering.  Memorial’s athletic council’s new 
leadership series continues with speaker Scott Cooper, IUSB head 

basketball coach.  Ms. Beathea also reported the pep band played at a 
recent Notre Dame Women’s Basketball game, and Maddie Crosbie was 
selected for the All-State Choir and will be performing at the Indiana 

Music Education Association (IMEA) state convention this month. 
 

SSAC 

Representative
s 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the December 20, 2016 –

Business Meeting minutes. 
 

Approval of 

Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$8,097,053.29 as shown on the January 10, 2017, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-89) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted an organizational resolution 
naming Kevin Scott, treasurer; Erica Purvis, deputy treasurer; copy 

fees; officers and members of the Board of Finance shall be the same as 
the officers and members of the Board of School Trustees; Board 
member compensation; cash management provider is Lake City Bank; 

Legal Counsel is Barnes & Thornburg; legal notices to be published in 
the Elkhart Truth and Goshen News; mileage rate is $.535; and bond 
amounts.  (Codified File 1617-90) 

 

Organizational 
Resolution  

 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing the 
transfer of funds during calendar year 2017.  (Codified File 1617-91) 

Resolution for 
Transfer of Funds 

 
By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $2,000.00 from 

C & K Manufacturing to the Pierre Moran orchestra; 14 pallets of food, 4 
pallets of books/stuffed animal sets, 2 pallets of coats and 10 pallets of 
hygiene items from Feed the Children for distribution to families over 

the holidays; 150 hand knitted scarves from members of First 
Congregational Church for distribution by our social workers; $800.00 
from Mr. and Mrs. Matthew Miller to Central for the Blazer Girls 

basketball overnight at the Columbus North tournament; $500.00 from 
John Rufo to Central’s athletic department for the annual “Beast Award” 

scholarship; $580.15 from the Metavante Corporation to Food Services 
to pay negative balances at Hawthorne; and $230.00 from the VFW 
Ladies Auxiliary to Food Services to pay negative balances at Mary Daly. 

 

Gift Acceptance 

By unanimous action, the Board awarded the bid for contracts for the 
timber harvest to Shipshewana Hardwoods of Shipshewana, Indiana as 

the highest bidder.  In response to Board inquiry regarding the need for 
supervision to prevent damage to the properties, Tony Gianesi, director 
of building services, reassured the Board he would be on site during the 

harvests.  (Codified File 1617-92) 
 

Award for 
Timber Harvest 

By unanimous action, the Board tabled the Redevelopment Commission 

appointment. 

Redevelopment 

Commission 
Appointment 

Tina Northern, director of special education, provided an update on the 

special education programs.  The increase of 33 students brings the 
total to 2,263 students in all categories and should be reflected in 
funding from the State in the spring.  The Indiana Department of 

Education (IDOE) compliance monitoring data was shared.  ECS is 
compliant in the area of having an Individual Education Program (IEP) 
developed and implemented by the child's third birthday. ECS is not 

considered disproportionate.  The number of suspensions and expulsions 
greater than 10 days for children with IEPs, and the representation of 
racial and ethnic groups in specific disability categories are considered 

compliant by the IDOE. 
 

Special 

Education 
Update 



3 
 

Tessa Sutton, supervisor of connective leadership & inclusion, discussed 
the Elkhart Culture Series: Continuing the Conversation.  The purpose of 

the series is to engage students, staff, and community in cultural 
experiences adding value to our schools and community.  The series 
includes studying the Holocaust with the following three events:  Anne 

Frank: A History for Today – currently hosted at Elkhart Central High 
School.  Over 1,000 students have viewed the presentation; Event 2: 
Eva Kor Community Presentation at the Lerner Theater; and Event 3: 

Midwest Museum of American Arts.  These events are for the community 
as well as students and are made possible by the generous donations of 
the our partners: Elkhart Community Education Foundation, Elkhart 

Education Foundation, Midwest Museum of American Art, City of Elkhart, 
the Center for Community Justice, and Wellfield Botanic Gardens. 
 

Culture Series 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.06S – Secretarial/Business 
Compensation. 

Board Policy – 
3422.06S 
Compensation 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 0130 - 
Functions, for initial consideration. 
 

Board Policy – 
0130 Functions 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative 
Regulation KI – Application for Fundraiser Approval, for initial 
consideration. 

 

Administrative 
Regulation KI 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a grant submission to the 

Indiana Department of Education for a Title II, Part A Improving Teacher 
Quality grant.  (Codified File 1617-93) 

Grants 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 

Memorial’s All-State Choir members to travel to Fort Wayne on January 
13 and 14, 2017 for rehearsal and performance with the All-State Choir. 
 

Overnight Trip 

Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the January 10, 2017 listing. (Codified File 1617-94) 

 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

 

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff member. 
(Codified Files 1617-95) 

Consent 
Agreement 

 
A settlement agreement for a certified staff member. (Codified 
Files 1617-96) 

Consent 
Agreement 

 
Employment of the following two (2) certified staff members for 
the 2016-2017 effective 1/3/17: 

Paige Adams - grade 6 at Beardsley 
Franchesca Hawkins - special education at Memorial 

 

Certified 
Employment 



4 
 

Retirement of certified staff member, Carol Nusbaum, grade 4 at 
Eastwood, effective May 31, 2017 with 22 years of service  

Certified  
Retirement 

 
Resignation of the following three (3) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated:  

Kelly Doherty - grade 6 at Pinewood, 12/29/16 
Brandon Murphy - school without walls at EACC, 1/3/17 
Leslie Rectanus -language arts at West Side, 12/29/16 

 

Certified 
Resignations 

Regular employment of the following nine (9) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated:  
Kristen Cooper - paraprofessional at Eastwood,1/3/17 
Alicia Cramer - social worker at Monger/Riverview, 1/3/17 

Kevin Hilger - food service at Commissary, 1/3/17 
Trisha Hutchison - paraprofessional at EACC, 1/3/17 
Nathan Scheetz - custodian at Central, 1/9/17 

Angela Schwalm - secretary at Food Service, 1/3/17 
Cody Smith - custodian at Central, 1/9/17 

 

Classified 
Employment 

Retirement of classified employee, Jane Bryant, paraprofessional 
at Osolo, with 19 years of service, effective 12/31/16. 

Classified 
Retirement 

 
Resignation of the following five (5) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Jessica Ake - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 1/6/17 
Diona Austin - bus driver at Transportation,12/16/16 
Brian Buckley - athletic director at Central, 3/3/17 

Nichole Carey - paraprofessional at EACC, 12/26/16 
Janelya Gates - food service at Central, 12/16/16 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Voluntary leave for the following two (2) classified employees:  
Michelle Kulp - food service at Cleveland, beginning 

1/10/17 and ending 3/21/17 

Emily Lewandowski - social worker at Monger, beginning 
8/15/16 and ending 5/31/17 

 

Voluntary 
Leave 
 

Superintendent Haworth asked Ashley Boling Molyneaux to announce 
the Spring Cycle Innovative Teaching Grants from the Elkhart Education 
Foundation.  Mrs. Molyneaux reported $18,000.00 in grants were being 

awarded, as well as support of the Eva Kor event, and continued work 
on the elementary library improvements.  The Board thanked Mrs. 
Molyneaux for the extraordinary work of the Elkhart Education 

Foundation. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 
 

Superintendent Haworth introduced recent administrative appointees: 

Tracey Kizyma-Whitmyer, Principal Elect at Mary Beck; Wesley 
Molyneaux, Director of Technology Integration; Denise Wappes, Director 
of Data and Assessments; and Brenda Kolbe, Director of 

Communication. 

From the 

Superintendent 
 



5 
 

Incoming Board President, Susan Daiber, welcomed Rodney Dale to the 
Board. 

 

From the Board 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:00 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
 

January 17, 2017 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
   
ECS Personnel Present: Rob Haworth Pam Melcher 
 Brenda Kolbe Kevin Scott 
 Dawn McGrath Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented with an update on the proposed one school design 

based on the approved strategic plan. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:00 a.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 9, 2017 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Pinewood Social Worker, Lindsay Burnett 

RE:  Donation Approval 

Pinewood received a donation from Karen Johnson and the rest of the Flexible Concepts team of hats 

and gloves as well as a monetary donation of $270 to pay negative lunch balance accounts and help 

families who have chronic negative balances.  With the monetary donation alone, 58 children will be 

served.  

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 Flexible Concepts 
c/o Karen Johnson 

 1620 Middlebury 
 Elkhart, IN 46516 
 

 

 









bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 0130/page 1 of 4 

(as presented during the 1/10/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 

FUNCTIONS 
 
 
0131 Legislative 
 
0131.1 Bylaws  
 
 The Board shall adopt bylaws for the organization and operation of 

this Board. 
 
 The Board reserves to itself the function of formulating as bylaws 

the rules for its own internal operation.  These bylaws shall be 
consistent with regulations of the State of Indiana insofar as they 
govern the work of the Board in operating the schools. 

  
 The formal adoption of bylaws shall be recorded in the minutes of 

the Board. 
  
 The bylaws may be adopted, amended, and repealed at any meeting 

of the Board. 
 
 Normally, the proposed adoption, amendment, or repeal shall have 

been proposed at a previous Board meeting and, once proposed, 
shall have remained on the agenda of each succeeding Board 
meeting until approved or rejected.  However, a second reading may 
be waived by a majority vote of the Board. 

 
 Bylaws shall be adopted, amended, repealed, or suspended by a 

two-thirds (2/3's) vote of the full Board (physically present).   
 



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 0130/page 2 of 4 

(as presented during the 1/10/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
0131.2 Policies 
  
 The Board shall adopt policies for the organization and operation of 

the Corporation.  The Board and its employees shall employ, at all 
times, their best efforts to comply with all policies adopted by the 
Board as well as all administrative guidelines adopted by the 
Superintendent of Schools. 

 
 Normally the proposed adoption, amendment or repeal shall have 

been proposed at a previous Board meeting and, once proposed, 
shall have remained on the agenda of each succeeding Board 
meeting until approved or rejected.  However, a second reading may 
be waived by a majority vote of the Board. 

  
 The Board shall reserve to itself the function of providing guides for 

the discretionary action of those to whom it delegates authority.  
These guides for discretionary action shall constitute the policies 
governing the operation of the school system. 

  
 The formulation and adoption of these written policies shall 

constitute the basic method by which the Board shall exercise its 
leadership in the operation of the school system.  The study and 
evaluation of reports concerning the execution of its written policies 
shall constitute the basic method by which the Board shall exercise 
its control over the operation of the school system. 

  
 The formal adoption of policies shall be recorded in the minutes of 

the Board.  Only those written statements so adopted and so 
recorded shall be regarded as official Board policy. 

  
 Policies shall be adopted, amended, repealed or suspended by a 

majority vote of the full Board (physically present). 
  
 I.C. 20-26-5-4 



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 0130/page 3 of 4 

(as presented during the 1/10/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
0132 Executive 
 
0132.1 Selection of Superintendent 
 
 The Board shall exercise its executive power in part by the 

appointment of a Superintendent who shall enforce the statutes of 
the State of Indiana, administrative guidelines of the State Board, 
and the policies of this Board. 

 
0132.2 Administrative Authority 
 
 The Superintendent shall consult with the Board with regard to the 

development and/or revision of policies. 
 
 The Superintendent shall prepare guidelines which have been 

reviewed by the Board for the administration of the Corporation 
which are not inconsistent with statutes, regulations of the State 
Board, and/or the policies of this Board.  (See Policy 1230.01) 

   
 The Superintendent shall be delegated the authority to take 

necessary action in circumstances not provided for in Board policy, 
provided that such action shall be reported to the Board at the next 
meeting following such action. 

 
 I.C. 20-26-5-4 
 
0133 Judicial 
 
 The School Board may assume jurisdiction over any dispute or 

controversy arising within this Corporation and concerning any 
matter in which authority has been vested in the Board by statute, 
rule, a contract, or policy of this Board. 

 
 In furtherance of its adjudicatory function, the Board may hold 

hearings or appeals which shall offer the parties to a dispute, on 
notice duly given, a fair and impartial forum for the resolution of the 
matter. 



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 0130/page 4 of 4 

(as presented during the 1/10/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
  
 Beyond the basic requirements of due process, a hearing or appeal 

may vary in form and content in line with the severity of the 
consequences which may flow from it, the degree of difficulty of 
establishing findings of fact from conflicting evidence, the impact of 
the Board's decision on the School Corporation, and any statutory 
or regulatory requirements. 

  
 In order to provide a fair hearing or appeal for the parties to a 

matter to be adjudicated by the Board, Board members shall be 
impartial in such matters and capable of making a decision based 
solely upon the evidence presented by the parties.  Therefore, Board 
members shall not conduct or participate in any investigation of the 
facts in such matters; collect, evaluate, or review the facts of the 
matter prior to presentation of the facts to the Board; or form or 
express an opinion not subject to change on any aspect of the 
pending matter. 

  
 If a Board member testifies concerning a material fact in dispute, 

has a personal interest in the matter under consideration, has 
participated in the gathering of evidence or the formulation of 
strategy, or has expressed an opinion on one or more material facts 
in dispute, that Board member shall not participate in the Board's 
consideration of the matter or vote in the matter, unless the Board 
member certifies and declares to the parties in the matter and to the 
Board that s/he is capable of resolving the matter based solely on 
the evidence presented to the Board. 

 
 If a Board member is unable to make this certification, the Board 

member shall voluntarily recuse himself/herself and shall not 
participate in any evidentiary hearing, discussion, or vote in the 
matter. 

 
 
 
© NEOLA 2009 



KI 
Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

(as presented during the 1/10/17 BST meeting) 

April 15, 2014 January 24, 2017 

School sponsored fundraisers must have the prior approval of the Board of School Trustees.  
Administrators seeking the approval of the Board must provide the following information to the 
Business Office: 

Application for Fundraiser Approval  

Name of School:  Date Submitted:  

Name of sponsoring group, club, class, etc:  

Name of employee responsible for the fundraiser:  

Phone number of employee responsible for fundraiser:   
Name of employee responsible for collecting proceeds from the fundraising activity:  

 
Description of the fundraising activity (include location if not at your school):  

 

Start Date/Time:  End Date/Time:  

For what purpose will the proceeds from this fundraiser be used? 

  

Are there any restrictions of the use of the proceeds from this fundraising activity?  
Does the fundraiser require students to go door to door?  Yes or No (circle one) 

 
I acknowledge I have read and understand the policy regarding fund raising activities and sales 
adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools and agree to abide 
by the same.  

Signature of employee responsible for fund raising activity: _____________________________ 

Principal Signature: _______________________________ Approved: _______ Denied: ______ 

Business Office Signature: __________________________ Approved: _______ Denied: ______ 

Approved by the Board of School Trustees on                                           



1028/PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION/REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION  

OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

(2018 High School Renovation Project) 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees (the “Board”) of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana (the “School Corporation”), has given consideration to all or 

any portion of (a) renovations throughout all or certain portions of the existing Memorial High 

School, including, but not limited to, construction and equipping of an addition to the facility 

containing approximately 10,000 square feet and renovation of approximately 11,500 square feet 

of the existing facility to provide for additional music/performing arts classrooms and related 

areas, renovation of approximately 16,500 square feet of the existing facility to provide for 

expanded or additional cafeteria and kitchen areas as well as approximately 20,000 square feet of 

other areas of the facility to accommodate the additional students, and the construction of a new 

secure front entrance to the facility, (b) miscellaneous facility improvement and/or equipping 

projects at any of the facilities operated by the School Corporation, and (c) projects related to 

any of the projects identified in clauses (a) or (b) (clauses (a) through and including (c), 

collectively, the “2018 High School Renovation Project”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code § 6-1.1-20-3.1, if the Board proposes to impose 

property taxes to pay debt service on bonds or lease rentals on any, renovation, improvement, 

remodeling or alteration project, which is not excluded under Indiana Code § 6-1.1-20-1.1, it 

must conduct a public hearing on the preliminary determination to proceed with such project 

prior to the Board’s adopting any resolution or ordinance making a preliminary determination to 

issue such bonds or enter into such lease; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code § 20-26-7-37, a public hearing must be held if the 

Board proposes to construct, repair or alter a school building at a cost of more than $1,000,000 

that would be financed by a lease agreement, issuing bonds, or any other available method; and 

WHEREAS, notice of said hearings have been given in accordance with Indiana law; and 

WHEREAS, interested people have been given the opportunity to present testimony and 

ask questions concerning the 2018 High School Renovation Project, and this Board has heard 

public input at a public hearing held this date concerning the 2018 High School Renovation 

Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, being duly advised, finds that it is in the best interests of the 

School Corporation and its citizens for the purpose of financing all or any portion of the 2018 

High School Renovation Project to enter into negotiations with the Elkhart Community School 

Building Corporation (the “Building Corporation”) to acquire all or any portion of the any of the 

facilities operated or to be operated by the School Corporation, and enter into a lease or leases or 

an amendment or amendments to an existing lease or leases (collectively, the “Lease”) with the 

Building Corporation, as lessor, for all or any portion of the facilities operated or to be operated 

by the School Corporation, in order to better serve the residents of the School Corporation, by 

allowing the Building Corporation to issue one or more series of first mortgage bonds 

(collectively, the “2018 High School Renovation Bonds”), which 2018 High School Renovation 



2 

Bonds will not exceed an original aggregate principal amount of Ten Million Dollars 

($10,000,000); and 

WHEREAS, the Board expects to pay for certain costs of the 2018 High School 

Renovation Project (collectively, the “Expenditures”) prior to the issuance of the 2018 High 

School Renovation Bonds, and to reimburse the Expenditures with the proceeds received by the 

School Corporation upon the issuance of the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to declare its intent to reimburse the Expenditures 

pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and Indiana Code §5-1-14-6(c). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Board hereby makes a preliminary determination that there exists a 

need for the 2018 High School Renovation Project.  Accordingly, the Board hereby makes a 

preliminary determination that to the extent permitted by law the Board will take all of the 

necessary steps to enter into the Lease with the Building Corporation for all or any portion of the 

facilities operated or to be operated by the School Corporation, pursuant to which the Building 

Corporation and the School Corporation will finance all or any portion of the 2018 High School 

Renovation Project.  The School Corporation and the Building Corporation will finance all or 

any portion of the 2018 High School Renovation Project through the issuance of the 2018 High 

School Renovation Bonds.  The total maximum original aggregate principal amount of the 2018 

High School Renovation Bonds will not exceed $10,000,000, or such greater amount in the case 

of the issuance of any 2018 High School Renovation Bonds all or a portion of which will be used 

to refund all or any portion of the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds.  The 2018 High School 

Renovation Bonds will have a maximum term not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date such 

2018 High School Renovation Bonds are issued.  The Lease will have a maximum term not to 

exceed twenty-two (22) years from the date it is recorded by the Building Corporation and 

School Corporation.  The proposed term of the Lease will begin on the date the Lease is recorded 

by the School Corporation and the Building Corporation in connection with the 2018 High 

School Renovation Project. 

Based on an estimated maximum yield that will be paid in connection with the 2018 High 

School Renovation Bonds of four and forty hundredths percent (4.40%), the total interest cost 

associated therewith, not taking into account any funds of the School Corporation or the Building 

Corporation being available for capitalized interest, will not exceed $5,474,548 (which amount is 

net of any funds received by the School Corporation or the Building Corporation from the United 

States of America as a result of any or all of the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds being 

issued under one or more federal tax credit programs).  Including interest costs, the maximum 

annual lease rental to be paid by the School Corporation under the Lease is $850,000 (which 

amount is net of any funds received by the School Corporation or the Building Corporation from 

the United States of America as a result of any or all of the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds 

being issued under one or more federal tax credit programs), and the maximum total lease rental 

paid by the School Corporation over the term of the Lease, not taking into account any funds of 

the School Corporation or the Building Corporation being available for capitalized interest, is 



3 

$15,544,000 (which amount is net of any funds received by the School Corporation or the 

Building Corporation from the United States of America as a result of any or all of the 2018 

High School Renovation Bonds being issued under one or more federal tax credit programs). 

The School Corporation’s certified total debt service fund tax levy for 2015 pay 2016 

(which is the most recent certified tax levy) is $9,083,447, and the School Corporation’s debt 

service fund tax rate for 2015 pay 2016 (which is the most recent certified tax rate) is $0.3267 

per $100 of assessed value.  The estimated total maximum debt service fund tax levy for the 

School Corporation and the estimated total maximum debt service fund tax rate for the School 

Corporation after the issuance of the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds is expected to be 

$9,083,447 and $0.3267 per $100 of assessed value, respectively, in 2018 pay 2019 as a result of 

the payment of the lease rentals under the Lease and the anticipated pay-off of other currently 

outstanding obligations of the School Corporation. 

The estimated completion date of the 2018 High School Renovation Project is December 

31, 2019.  The Board estimates that the operational costs associated with the 2018 High School 

Renovation Project will have no negative impact on the School Corporation’s tax rate upon 

completion of the 2018 High School Renovation Project. 

Section 2. A notice of the foregoing preliminary determinations set forth in Section 1 

of this resolution shall be given in accordance with Indiana Code § 6-1.1-20-3.1. 

Section 3. The Board hereby declares its official intent that to the extent permitted by 

law, to execute the Lease with the Building Corporation, and to request the Building Corporation 

to issue the 2018 High School Renovation Bonds, which 2018 High School Renovation Bonds 

will not exceed an original aggregate principal amount of approximately Ten Million Dollars 

($10,000,000), and to reimburse costs of the 2018 High School Renovation Project consisting of 

the Expenditures from proceeds of the sale of such 2018 High School Renovation Bonds. 

Section 4. Any and all actions previously taken by any member of the Board, the 

Superintendent of the School Corporation or his designee or the Chief Financial Officer of the 

School Corporation or his designee in connection with the foregoing preliminary determinations, 

including, but not limited to, publication of the notice of the consolidated public hearing held in 

connection with such preliminary determinations, be, and hereby are, ratified and approved. 



4 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24
th

 day of January, 2017.   

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF THE ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS, 

ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA 

AYE  NAY 

   

     

   

     

   

     

   

     

   

     

   

     

   

     

   

   

ATTEST: 

 

  

Secretary of the Board of School Trustees 

  

 

DMS JJQ 4589605v3 











bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 0140/page 1 of 4 
 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
0144.1 Compensation, Insurance, Expenses and Travel 
 
 A. Compensation 
  
  1. Notwithstanding any other statute, the Board shall 

have the power to pay each of its members a 
reasonable amount for service as such member, not 
to exceed $2,000.00 per year. 

  
  2. In addition, effective January 1, 2016, a per diem of 

fifty dollars ($50.00) per member for attending each 
properly advertised special purpose or work session 
meeting of the full Board shall be paid.  Conference 
attendance shall not qualify for a per diem. 

  
 B. Insurance 
   
  Members of the Board shall be eligible to participate in the 

group health/life insurance plan of the School Corporation 
on the same basis as members of the administrative group. 

  
  1. Health 
  
  Board members who choose to participate shall be 

provided a hospitalization, major medical, dental, and 
prescription drug insurance policy.  Participating 
Board members shall select either a single or family 
plan from those plans offered to the employees of the 
Elkhart Community Schools. 

  
 2. Life 
  
  Board members who choose to participate in the 

insurance plan shall be provided a group term life 
insurance policy in the same amount as active 
full-time teachers. 

  



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 0140/page 2 of 4 
 
 C. Expenses 
   
  The Board may reimburse members of the Board for 

expenses incurred in visiting schools outside the 
Corporation and in attending regional, State, and National 
meetings or conferences pertaining to the Board's work. 

   
  Expenses may include travel, meals, lodging, and 

registration.  In no case will the allowance be greater than 
actual expenditure for the member. 

 
 D. Travel/Conference Attendance 
   
  Upon Board approval, Board members will be permitted to 

attend National and State conferences.  Each calendar year 
Board members will be permitted to be reimbursed for 
attendance at the Indiana School Boards Association (ISBA) 
regional meetings and/or lobbying trips. 

   
  In addition, newly elected Board members will be eligible to 

attend the ISBA conference for new Board member 
orientation. 

   
  A Board member who is elected to a leadership position with 

either the ISBA or NSBA will be reimbursed for expenses 
related to performance of those duties which are not 
reimbursed by the Association. 

   
  Elkhart Community Schools will pay or reimburse a Board 

member for his/her expenses for the following items 
provided that they are accompanied by an original receipt: 

   
  1. registration fees 
  
  2. overnight lodging at the single room rate 
  
  3. food expenses which are not to exceed a per diem rate 

of thirty-fivefifty dollars ($35.0050.00) 
  
  4. gratuities for food - not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) 

(all other gratuities will not be reimbursed) 
  



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 0140/page 3 of 4 
 
  5. car transportation at the IRS allowable rate (odometer 

readings are required) 
  6. coach class airfare 
  
  7. When travel to a National conference can most 

economically be accomplished with air travel, but the 
member elects to drive, travel reimbursement will be 
at the lowest available rate for a single round trip 
coach class airfare for that conference 

  
  8. tolls and parking fees 
    
  9. taxi fares 
  
 Elkhart Community Schools will not reimburse for: 
   
 1. personal telephone calls; 
   
 2. alcoholic beverages; 
   
 3. movie rentals; 
   
 4. recreational programs and tours; 
   
 5. attendance at breakfasts, luncheons, dinners when 

the cost exceeds the per diem for food, or pre-
conference sessions (unless they are included with the 
regular conference registration fee or the member is 
required to attend as the result of being elected to 
office); 

   
 6. personal car rental; 
   
 7. expenses incurred by a spouse, child, friend (i.e. - 

meals, transportation, registration, a double room 
rate, etc.); and 

   
 8. unusual expenses not covered above. 
  
 Upon the member's return, all original itemized receipts 

must be presented to the Superintendent's executive 
assistant for reimbursement. 



bylaw 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES BYLAWS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 0140/page 4 of 4 
 
  
 
 Board members are invited to attend a number of 

school/community events.  When tickets need to be 
purchased for these events: 

   
 1. ECS will purchase individual Board member tickets to 

school sponsored events; 
   
 2. attendance at non-school sponsored events will 

normally be the responsibility of individual Board 
members. 

 
 I.C. 20-26-4-7 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2012  



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 1 of 16 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEES IN MISCELLANEOUS POSITIONS COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for 
Employees to be effective for January 1, 2017.  In addition, the three percent (3%) 
employee contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

POSITION HOURLY 
 WAGE RANGE 

Assistant Supervisor of Transportation 23.31 – 28.78 

Transportation Trainer/Dispatcher 19.42 – 22.69 

Food Service Truck Driver 15.59 – 18.52 

Food Service Receiving/Supply 15.59 – 18.52 

Evening Supervisor of Building Services 20.44 – 25.16 

Food Service Training Specialist 17.66 – 24.74 

Food Service Bids & Commodity Coordinator 16.82 – 26.29 

Executive Chef & Culinary Event Coordinator 16.82 – 26.29 

Quality Assurance Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 

Production Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 

Transportation Route/Driver Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 

Adult/Community Education Non-Contract Teachers 32.06 * 

Building Community Education Coordinator 27.14 – 33.93 

Radio Station Staff Announcer 9.15 – 13.01 

Radio Station Development Assistant 10.64 – 17.02 

School Security Officer 25.00 

Title I/Funded Pupil/Program/Parent Support Person 19.39 – 28.24 

High School Parent/Community Liaison 19.39 – 28.24 

District Translator 19.39 – 28.24 

Evening Events Supervisor 14.67 

Asst. Site Coordinator - 21st Century Community Learning Center  14.00 

After-School Community Education Organized Activities Leader 14.00 

After-School Community Education Organized Activities Assistant 9.39 

Deaf/Hard of Hearing Educational Interpreter 15.96 – 29.80 

Early College Data Specialist 24.00 – 27.43 

EACC Testing Specialist 24.00 – 27.43 

*    Hourly rate based on .001 of the certified teacher’s base salary 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 2 of 16 
 
 
 

POSITION YEARLY 
 SALARY RANGE 
Radio Station Manager 49,181 –73,067 

Radio Station Development Director 46,285 – 70,038 

Radio Station Business Account Manager  36,531 – 68,873 

Radio Station Program Director 36,531 – 56,204 

Radio Station Senior Reporter and Assignment Editor 31,559 – 46,210 

Radio Station Operations Manager 25,292 – 41,450 

Radio Station Morning Edition Host 28,704 – 45,184 

Radio Station Promotions Manager 29,523 – 43,928 

Radio Station Membership Manager 32,741 – 46,384 

Olweus Bullying Prevention Program Coordinator 42,242 – 57,151 

Assistant Supervisor of Building Services 54,504 – 68,130 

Adult and Community Education Program Manager 62,889 – 73,371 

Data Specialist 37,247 – 58,531 

Digital Communication and Data Support Specialist 37,247 – 58,531 

School Psychologist Intern 36,230 

21st Century Community Learning Center Coordinator 2,500 (per semester) 

 
An hourly employee who is required to report to work to respond to an emergency 
outside of the employee’s regular work hours will be paid for a minimum of two (2) 
hours. 
 

























 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  January 24, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee effective August 1, 2017: 

 

James Langton  Memorial/World Language 21 Years of Service 

CLASSIFIED 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employee:  

 

Jamie Greenway  Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

Began:  11/2/16   PE:  1/18/17 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

 

Holly Hardy Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 10/12/15 Resign: 1/6/17 

 

Broc Hiatt Commissary/Misc. Food Svc Rec 

Began: 5/13/14 Resign: 1/10/17 

 

Julie Johnson Central/Food Service 

Began: 8/15/06 Resign: 2/15/17 

 

Nicole Quesinberry Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/4/16 Resign: 1/3/17 

 

Collin Rowland Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/24/16 Resign: 1/13/17 

 

Linda Sedlock Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 9/26/16 Resign: 1/5/17 

 

  



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

c. Unpaid Leave Request  – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employee:  

 

Deidre Wright   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 1/3/17   End: 4/7/17 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session January 10 2017
	Minutes - Board of Finance 2017
	Minutes - Organizational Meeting January 10 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting January 10 2017
	Minutes - Work Session January 17 2017
	Balance Sheet December
	Fund Loan Memo
	Gift Acceptance - Pinewood
	Gift Acceptance - Student Services
	Gift Acceptance - Woodland
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy 0130 1-24-17
	FUNCTIONS

	Administrative Regulation KI
	1028-PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION-REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION-2018 HIGH SCHOOL RENOVATION PROJECT
	Conflicts of Interest
	Board Policy 0144 1-24-17
	MEMBERSHIP
	Compensation, Insurance, Expenses and Travel

	Board Policy 3422.12S 1-24-17
	New Course  - CCR BRIDGE  MATH READY  2017-18
	New Course - MATH 10   2017-18
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report

